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“Going into 2020, I was a little worried about how things would go here with a pandemic. I should
have known FNBA would handle things exceptionally well. Administration and the Board always kept
employees’ and customers’ health and safety at first priority. I cannot say everything was easy the whole
time, but when the challenges presented themselves, everyone worked together the best we could and
got through it. 2020 was a tough year for everyone, and I am sure everyone is glad we are now into 2021
with lobbies open. I know I am!”

-Lauren Berberich, Customer Service Representative
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Our Locations
Allendale
301 East Main Street
Allendale, Illinois 62410
618-299-4411

Mount Carmel
1515 West Ninth Street
Mt. Carmel, Illinois 62863
618-263-6511

West Salem
200 West Church Street
West Salem, Illinois 62476
618-456-8884

Carmi
1500 West Main Street
Carmi, Illinois 62821
618-380-9500
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2020 Board of Directors

Bryan K. Loeffler

Michael A. Dunkel
Director

Donald W. Price
President

Philip G. Hipsher
Director

Secretary/Treasurer

Robert J. Coleman
Chairman

Michael E. White
Director

Shane E. Gray
Director

Our Mission Statement
The mission of The First National Bank is to provide professional,
high quality, personalized financial service to the communities in its
market, while remaining sound and profitable; and to remain corporately
positioned as a locally owned bank.

“The unparalleled challenges of 2020 will set it apart for all time. And
yet, the company and the bank are thriving! How blessed we are to be
in rural America and to feel so good about what we have done to help.”

-Robert J. Coleman, Chairman of the Board
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2020 Executive Management Group

Katherine Clark

Kristin Schrader

Rodney Loeffler

David Guinnip

Donald Price
Tamara McFarland

Dean Ackerman

Mallory Harrison

“We experienced trial by fire in 2020. We had made pandemic plans in the past; we
had thoroughly roundtable-tested those plans and felt successful. Yet nothing in
those paper plans prepared me for the non-quantifiable impacts of a major business
disruption. Our directors’ focus on health and safety motivated me to think outside
the box for remote solutions, and my coworkers’ resilience and optimism inspired
me to look for positives in the daily grind. With the struggles of 2020 in the rearview
mirror, I am looking forward to new opportunities for growth and advancement in
2021!”

-Kristin S. Schrader, Vice President

6

Annual Report 2020

Our Company Profile

Corporate Profile
Allendale Bancorp, Inc. is a one-bank holding company whose wholly-owned subsidiary is The First National
Bank of Allendale. The stock of Allendale Bancorp, Inc. is held by 268 shareholders, a high percentage of whom
live in Wabash County, Illinois and the surrounding area. The holding company and the bank have no other
corporate affiliations.

Corporate Direction Statement
Within the constraint of economic prudence, the bank will continue to 1) explore new
market opportunities, 2) expand services and products, and 3) improve its technology and
market position, with the goal of becoming the dominant bank in its markets while remaining the friendly and responsive bank that people prefer.

Corporate Values Statement
The Bank is committed to providing its customers with superior service, its
shareholders with enhanced value, its communities with economic opportunity,
and its staff with rewarding and enjoyable employment.
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Financial Highlights (cont.)
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President’s Letter to Shareholders
Dear Fellow Shareholders:
On behalf of the Board of Directors and Bank
Management team, we are pleased to present
our Annual Report and financial statements
for 2020.
On March 11, 2020, the World Health
Organization (WHO) declared that the
COVID-19 outbreak constituted a pandemic.
From the onset of this pandemic, our focus
was on the well-being of our employees,
our customers, and our communities. Our
team consistently performs simulated
pandemic situations once or twice a year.
These exercises in previous years had us
well prepared to move from simulated to real
actions.
On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief
and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was
signed into law. The CARES Act created the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), which
serves as an extension of the Small Business
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Administration (SBA) 7(a) loan program,
aimed at helping small businesses who
have been severely impacted by COVID-19.
The Bank has participated in every aspect
of this program.
Our lenders helped
approximately 260 customers apply for PPP
loans totaling $12.5 million during the first
round of funding. In addition, we assisted
customers adversely impacted by COVID-19
by accommodating requests for temporary
deferments of regularly scheduled loan
payments and by providing robust digital
platforms and drive-through options to
complete deposit and loan transactions.
In addition, our tellers and operations staff
successfully handled a dramatic increase
in call volumes with inquiries related to
federal stimulus payments and mobile
banking enrollments.
True character is often revealed in
challenging times. I am proud of and
grateful for our outstanding employees.
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Their ability to adapt to a difficult situation proved just how essential these
workers actually are. While we never could have predicted the nature or
extent of this pandemic, the Bank was on sound footing operationally
and financially going into the crisis. Since 1906, our bank has weathered
many economic cycles, adjusted, and continued to prosper. In good times
and bad, we have always protected your investment by staying true to
our conservative banking philosophies and a focus on true community
banking. COVID-19 has changed our daily routine, not our commitment to
our shareholders, customers and communities.
Results of Operations
Net income surpassed that of any year in the Bank’s history. For the third
consecutive year, Allendale Bancorp, Inc., experienced earnings growth and
ended 2020 with record earnings of $2.8 million, an increase of $215,000
or 8.2% over 2019. That net income represented earnings per share of
$4.89, compared to $4.53 in 2019. Bank level net income expressed as a
return on average assets was 1.04% and a return on average shareholders’
equity of 9.96% respectively.
Our largest revenue source is net interest income, the difference between
the interest income we earn on our interest-earning assets, primarily loans
and investment securities, and the interest paid on our interest-bearing
liabilities, primarily deposit accounts and borrowings. Net interest income
for 2020 was $8.9 million, an increase of $805,000. This increase was due
primarily to strong growth of our earning assets funded by a 14.8% growth
in deposits.
Our net interest margin decreased year
over year, measuring 3.52% during 2020,
compared to 3.74% in 2019, as the Fed’s
1.5% rate cut created downward pressure
on asset yields.
Bank management considers its reserve for
loan and lease losses sufficient to absorb
losses that are probable as of December 31,
2020. The Bank’s net loan loss experience
in 2020 was 0.15% of average loans
compared to net losses in 2019 of 0.05%.

“Net Income
surpassed that of
any year in the Bank’s
history.”
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This level of loan losses is acceptable to Bank management.
Noninterest income is an important revenue source for us and consists primarily of service
charges on deposit accounts and gains on the sale of loans. The declining interest rate
environment in 2020 provided a significant boost to our 1-4 family mortgage lending activity.
Non-interest income related to the sale of mortgages amounted to $552,000 compared to
$190,000 in 2019. This equates to a year-over-year increase of 191%.
Noninterest expense consists primarily of compensation and employee benefits, occupancy
and equipment expenses, advertising, data processing, professional fees, and other
operating expenses. In 2020, total non-interest expense was $6.1 million, an increase of
$523,000 or 9.5%. Increases in salaries & occupancy expense totaled $407,000 and were
primarily the result of annual wage and merit increases, as well as added personnel and
occupancy expenses related to the newly opened Carmi Production Office.
Our opening in Carmi was very successful. First year loan growth exceeded $12 million,
well above our initial projections for this location. I feel strongly that our business approach
is a good fit for the White County market and feel optimistic for continued growth from this
office.
Analysis of Financial Condition
During 2020, we experienced balance sheet growth directly related to federal stimulus
programs and SBA PPP lending activity. Total assets on December 31, 2020 were $288.4
million, an increase of $35.6 million or 14.1% over December 31, 2019. Total equity at
December 31, 2020 was $30.5 million, an increase of $2.9 million or 10.7% over December
31, 2019.
Total loans were $189.6 million at December 31, 2020, an increase of $18.6 million or 10.9%
from December 31, 2019. As noted earlier, approximately half of this increase was from SBA
PPP loan originations. We continued to support our strategy of maintaining balance within
the loan portfolio between consumer, agricultural, and commercial loans, ending the year
with 37% consumer-related loans, 38% agricultural related loans, and 25% in commercial
loans. We are well positioned to continue lending in the markets we serve.
We maintain an investment portfolio to provide us with important liquidity considerations
and earnings potential. Our investment portfolio consists primarily of United States Agency
debt, mortgage-backed securities either guaranteed by the U.S. government or issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank, and state and local government debt. As of December 31, 2020,
our investment portfolio totaled $63.3 million, a $14.3 million increase over December 31,
2019, or 29.2%, and it had an average tax-equivalent yield of 2.35% during 2020.
Deposits generated within our local markets are the major source of funds for our lending
and investment activities. Total deposits at December 31, 2020, were $250.3 million, an
increase of $32.2 million or 14.8%. Government stimulus programs and pandemic related
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lending programs have been major contributors to above average deposit growth across
the banking industry.
Total equity was $30.5 million at December 31, 2020. Our Board of Directors is committed
to providing a solid return to our shareholders and declared a total of $1.24 per share in
dividends during 2020, a 3.33% increase over dividends paid in 2019.
Please refer to our Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020 for more
information regarding our 2020 results.
We continue to be optimistic for the future of Allendale Bancorp, Inc. and The First
National Bank of Allendale. While the future may hold several challenges, there continues
to be a place for a local, community-minded financial institution that works hard every
day to satisfy its customers. We expect to meet these challenges with a helpful and
knowledgeable staff of bankers that provide services that exceed customer expectations.
My letter this year ends with sadness, respect, and a memorial reflection on the passing
of a former Chairman of our Board. This annual report is dedicated to the memory of Mr.
James E. Litherland, Jr., who died October 23, 2020. Mr. Litherland joined our Bank Board
on January 11, 1972. He served as Chairman from January 12, 1999 to April 10, 2012.
Jim’s 40 years of service made him the longest serving director in the history of the Bank.
He served another six years as Director Emeritus. Jim was extremely proud of the Bank’s
progress and played an integral part in its success. His presence will be greatly missed.
Thank you for your continued support of Allendale Bancorp, Inc. and The First National
Bank of Allendale.
Sincerely,

Donald W. Price
President & Chief Executive Officer

“True character is often revealed in challenging
times. I am proud of and grateful for our outstanding
employees.”
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ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
ALLENDALE, ILLINOIS
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
December 31, 2020 and 2019
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Allendale Bancorp, Inc.
Allendale, Illinois
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Allendale Bancorp, Inc. (a corporation) and Subsidiaries (Bank), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Allendale Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Evansville, Indiana				
March 3, 2021
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ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES ALLENDALE, ILLINOIS

ALLENDALE
BANCORP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE
SHEETS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2019
2020
ASSETS
ALLENDALE
BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Cash
$
2,850,858
$
4,339,484
Due from banks, non-interest bearing
1,248,143
1,734,867
December 31,
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
4,099,001
6,074,351
2019
2020
ASSETS
Due from banks, interest bearing
18,104,726
14,205,902
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Debt Securities available-for-sale
63,373,279
49,047,700
Cash
$
2,850,858
$
4,339,484
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
Due from banks, non-interest bearing
1,248,143
1,734,867
of $2,335,550 in 2020 and $2,074,196 in 2019
187,231,203
169,002,028
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
4,099,001
6,074,351
Accrued interest receivable
2,323,168
1,940,124
Due
from banks,
interest bearing
18,104,726
14,205,902
Premises
and equipment,
net
4,796,192
4,793,607
Debt
Securities
63,373,279
49,047,700
Federal
Homeavailable-for-sale
Loan Bank stock, restricted, at cost
435,411
221,676
Loans
net of allowance
Otherreceivable,
stock, restricted,
at cost for loan losses
157,850
157,850
of
$2,335,550
ininsurance
2020 and $2,074,196 in 2019
187,231,203
169,002,028
Bank
owned life
6,588,384
6,448,746
Accrued
interest receivable
2,323,168
1,940,124
Other assets
1,314,927
898,142
Premises and equipment, net
4,796,192
4,793,607
Total Assets
$ 288,424,141
$ 252,790,126
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, restricted, at cost
435,411
221,676
AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Other LIABILITIES
stock, restricted,
at cost
157,850
157,850
Bank
owned life insurance
6,588,384
6,448,746
Deposits
Other
assets deposits
1,314,927
898,142
Demand
$
77,370,686
$
54,527,452
Savings
andAssets
NOW deposits
110,896,583
98,351,799
Total
$ 288,424,141
$ 252,790,126
Time deposits
62,026,962
65,230,019
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Total deposits
250,294,231
218,109,270
Deposits
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
3,052,652
2,031,506
Demand
deposits
$
77,370,686
$
54,527,452
Federal Home
Loan Bank advances
4,561,515
5,072,278
Savings and NOW deposits
110,896,583
98,351,799
Total Liabilities
257,908,398
225,213,054
Time deposits
62,026,962
65,230,019
Stockholders’
Equity
Total deposits
250,294,231
218,109,270
Common
stock,and
$1other
par value;
1,000,000 shares
Accrued
expenses
liabilities
3,052,652
2,031,506
authorized
and Bank
579,198
issued and outstanding
579,198
579,198
Federal
Home Loan
advances
4,561,515
5,072,278
Additional paid-in capital
1,668,119
1,668,119
Total Liabilities
257,908,398
225,213,054
Retained earnings
26,922,667
24,808,831
Stockholders’
Equity
Accumulated
other comprehensive income,
Common
$1 tax
par value; 1,000,000 shares
net ofstock,
income
1,345,759
520,924
authorized and 579,198 issued and outstanding
579,198
579,198
Total Stockholders’ Equity
30,515,743
27,577,072
Additional paid-in capital
1,668,119
1,668,119
$ 26,922,667
288,424,141
$ 24,808,831
252,790,126
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Retained Total
earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
net of income tax
1,345,759
520,924
Total Stockholders’ Equity

30,515,743

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

$

288,424,141

27,577,072
$

252,790,126

See accompanying notes.

See accompanying notes.
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ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS
OF INCOME
CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS
OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31,
2020
2019

Interest Income
Loans, including fees
Investment securities
Federal funds sold
Total Interest Income

$ 9,431,478
1,294,880
47,929
10,774,287

$ 8,930,085
1,252,552
128,134
10,310,771

1,662,738
118,525
1,781,263

2,002,695
120,468
2,123,163

8,993,024

8,187,608

Interest Expense
Deposits
Other borrowed funds
Total Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan Losses

(539,050)

Net Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses

7,612,608

Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts
ATM interchange fees
Other income
Life insurance
Gain on sale of loans
Net realized gains/(losses) on sales of available-for-sale securities
Total Noninterest Income

281,932
351,801
4,782
188,489
551,553
15,661
1,394,218

384,419
337,975
46,160
197,002
189,637
56,386
1,211,579

Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
FDIC deposit insurance fees
Director fees
Professional and consulting fees
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Data processing fees
Other expense
Total Noninterest Expenses

3,367,716
704,449
29,061
175,700
320,912
164,890
364,090
261,838
661,272
6,049,928

3,034,741
630,793
47,066
171,200
317,313
121,807
265,521
234,146
704,485
5,527,072

Income before Income Taxes

3,798,264

3,297,115

Income Tax Expense
NET INCOME
Earnings per share
Weighted average shares outstanding

966,222

676,196

$ 2,832,042

$ 2,620,919

$

$

4.89

4.53

579,198

See accompanying notes.
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(575,000)

8,453,974

579,198

4
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ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
Years Ended December 31,
2020
2019
Net income

$

2,832,042

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gains (losses) on debt securities available for sale:
Unrealized holding losses arising during the period, net of deferred
tax benefit (expense) of $590,590 in 2020 and $228,607 in 2019
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of
deferred tax benefit (expense) of $3,394 in 2020 and $11,841 in 2019
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax
Total comprehensive income

$

$

2,620,919

812,066

895,404

12,769
824,835
3,656,877

44,545
939,949
3,560,868

$

ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Balance at December 31, 2018
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income

Common
Stock

Treasury
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

$582,798

$ (72,000)

$1,668,119

$22,951,350

See accompanying notes.

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

$

2,620,919

(419,025)

939,949

Total comprehensive income
Treasury Stock Redemption

72,000

(68,400)

5

0

(695,038)
$579,198

$

0

$1,668,119

$24,808,831
2,832,042

(695,038)
$

520,924

$27,577,072

824,835

2,832,042
824,835

Total comprehensive income

3,656,877

Cash dividends declared
Balance at December 31, 2020

2,620,919
939,949
3,560,868

(3,600)

Cash dividends declared
Balance at December 31, 2019
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income

Total

$24,711,242

(718,206)
$579,198

$

0

$1,668,119

$26,922,667

See accompanying notes.

(718,206)
$ 1,345,759

$ 30,515,743
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
2020
2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
$ 2,832,042
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses
539,050
Depreciation and amortization
368,443
Net amortization on securities available-for-sale
474,382
(Gain)Loss on sale of available for sale securities
(15,661)
Bank owned life insurance income
(139,638)
(Increase) decrease in
Accrued interest receivable
(383,044)
Other assets
(423,601)
Increase (decrease) in
Other liabilities
659,153
Total adjustments
1,079,084
Net cash provided by operating activities
3,911,126
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease in interest bearing deposits
(3,898,824)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of
available-for-sale debt securities
15,326,064
Purchases of available-for-sale debt securities
(28,923,536)
Purchase of Federal Reserve Bank stock
(213,735)
Net (increase) decrease in loans receivable
(18,768,225)
Purchases of premises and equipment
(352,527)
Net cash used in investing activities
(36,830,783)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in demand, savings and NOW deposit accounts
35,376,333
Net increase (decrease) in other time deposits
(3,203,057)
Payments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances
(510,763)
Cash dividends
(718,206)
Net cash provided by financing activities

575,000
272,708
273,213
(56,386)
(828,512)
(246,106)
145,430
(285,205)
(149,858)
2,471,061
(6,444,424)
26,675,376
(25,063,093)
65,880
(12,416,923)
(1,468,365)
(18,651,549)
16,044,289
3,837,052
(1,688,394)
(695,038)

30,944,307

17,497,909

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

(1,975,350)
6,074,351
$ 4,099,001

1,317,421
4,756,930
$ 6,074,351

Interest paid

$ 1,838,403

$ 2,101,385

Income taxes paid

$

$ 1,129,335

See accompanying notes.
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$ 2,620,919

986,068
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Note 1 – Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies
Allendale Bancorp, Inc. (the “Bancorp”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, First National Bank of Allendale (the “Bank” and together with Bancorp) provide various
banking and other financial services to their customers. The Bank’s customers include individuals and commercial enterprises within its principal market area
consisting of Wabash, Lawrence, and Edwards Counties in Illinois. The Bank operates under a national bank charter and provides full banking services. As a
national bank, the Bank is subject to regulation by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Additionally, the Bank maintains correspondent banking relationships. Note 4 discusses the types of securities the Bank invests in. Note 5 discusses the types of
lending that the Bank engages in. The Bank does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.
The accounting and reporting policies and practices of the Bank conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
following is a summary of the Bank’s significant accounting policies.
Date of Management’s Review
The Bank has evaluated the accompanying consolidated financial statements for subsequent events and transactions through March 3, 2021, the date these
financial statements were available for issue, based on FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, and have determined that no material subsequent events have occurred
that would affect the information presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements or require additional disclosure.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bancorp and the Bank as well Allendale Holdings, LLC Allendale Holdings, LLC is
a Limited Liability Company that the Bank wholly owns. In consolidation, all significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic
environment and market conditions. In connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for
significant collateral.
The Bank’s loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, consumer assets, and business assets. Although the Bank has a
diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to honor their contracts is dependent on local economic conditions in the agricultural industry.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans may be necessary based on
changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated losses
on loans. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their
examination. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change materially in the near term. However, the amount
of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be estimated.
Presentation of Cash Flows
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, amounts due from banks, non-interest bearing (including cash items in
process of clearing); interestbearing deposits in banks with an original maturity of 90 days or less, and federal funds sold. Generally federal funds are sold for oneday periods. The Bank considers all non-interest bearing deposits in other banks and federal funds sold to be cash and cash equivalents.
The Bank has deposit accounts with several financial institutions. The accounts are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 per bank at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
At December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Bank had approximately $751,000 and $1,024,000 in excess of the FDIC insurance limit, respectively.
Comprehensive Income
Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in net income. Certain changes in assets and liabilities,
such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the shareholders’ equity section of the balance sheet.
Such items along with net income are components of comprehensive income.
Investment Securities
Debt securities classified as available-for-sale are those debt securities that the Bank intends to hold for an indefinite period of time but not necessarily to maturity.
Any decision to sell a security classified as available-for-sale would be based on various factors, including significant movement in interest rates, changes in the
maturity mix of the Company’s assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital considerations, and other similar factors. These securities are carried at
estimated fair value based on information provided by a third party pricing service with any unrealized gains or losses excluded from net income and reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), which is reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity, net of the related deferred tax effect.
Gains and losses realized on sales of investment debt securities, determined using the adjusted cost basis of the specific securities sold, are included in noninterest
income in the consolidated statements of income. Additionally, declines in the estimated fair value of individual investment.
securities below their cost that are other-than-temporary are reflected as realized losses in the statements of income. Factors affecting the determination of
whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred include, among other things, (i) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less
than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, (iii) that the Bank does not intend to sell these securities, and (iv) it is more likely than
not that the Bank will not be required to sell before a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
Dividend and interest income, including amortization of premium and accretion of discount arising at acquisition, from all categories of investment securities are
included in interest incomein the consolidated statements of income. market value, the Bank’s investment in these stocks are carried at cost. A determination as
to whether there has been an impairment of a restricted stock investment is performed on a quarterly basis and includes a review of the current financial condition
of the issuer.
Restricted stock is stock from the Federal Home Loan Bank of St. Louis (“FHLB”), which is restricted as to its marketability. Because no ready market exists for
these investments and they have no quoted market value, the Bank’s investment in this stock is carried at cost. A determination as to whether there hs been an
imparirment of restricted stock investments is performed on a quarterly basis and includes a review of the current financial condition of the issuer.
Paycheck Protection Program
In 2020, the Bank began participating in the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), which is a loan program that originated from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act) and subsequently expanded by the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act. The PPP is administered
by the Small Business Administration (SBA). The PPP is designed to provide U.S. small businesses with csh-flow assistance through immediate loans fully
guaranteed by the federal government. If the borrower meets certain criteria and uses the proceeds towards certain eligible expenses, the borrower can apply with
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the SBA for forgiveness, and if approved, the borrower’s obligation for the loan’s repayment is cancelled. Upon the borrower’s approval for forgiveness, the SBA
pays the Bank for the principal and accrued interest owed on the loan. If, for whatever reason, the full principal of the loan is not forgiven by the SBA, the unforgiven
portion of the loan will be re-amortized over the term of the loan and all remaining payments will be the responsibility of the customer. Nevertheless, if for any
reason the customer defaults or fails to pay the loan in full, the SBA still guarantees payment of the any remaining portion of the loan.
During 2020, the Bank made 266 PPP loans totaling $12,753,401. At December 31, 2020, the Bank had 175 PPP loans totaling $9,276,361 that were still waiting for
the SBA’s approval for forgiveness. These PPP loans have been included with commercial loans in Note 4.
Loans and Allowances for Loan Losses
Loans are carried at the amount of unpaid principal, adjusted for deferred loan fees and origination costs. Interest on loans is accrued based on the principal
amounts outstanding. Nonrefundable loan fees and related direct costs are deferred and the net amount is amortized to income as a yield adjustment over the life
of the loan using the interest method. When principal or interest is delinquent for ninety days or more, the Bank evaluates the loan for nonaccrual status.
After a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected isreversed against current period interest income. Subsequent
collections of interest payments on nonaccrual loans are recognized as interest income unless ultimate collectibility of the loan is in doubt. Cash collections on
loans where ultimate collectibility remains in doubt are applied as reductions of the loan principal balance and no interest income is recognized until the principal
balance has been collected.
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are
charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance. The allowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (i) FASB ASC 450, Contingencies, which requires that losses be accrued when they are
probable of occurring and estimable and (ii) FASB ASC 310, Receivables, which requires that losses or impaired loans be accrued based on the differences between
the loan balance and either the value of collateral, if such loans are considered to be collateral dependent and in the process of collection, or the present value of
future cash flows, or the loan’s value as observable in the secondary market. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, the
Bank has concerns about the ability to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances
surrounding the loan and borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall
in relation to the principal and interest owed. The Bank’s allowance for loan losses has three basic components: the specific allowance, the formula allowance
and the pooled allowance. Each of these components is determined based upon estimates that can and do change when the actual events occur. As a result of
the uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, management’s estimate of loan losses and the related allowance could change in the near term. The specific
allowance component is used to individually establish an allowance for loans identified for impairment testing. When impairment is identified, a specific reserve
may be established based on the Bank’s calculation of the estimated loss embedded in the individual loan. Impairment testing includes consideration of the
borrower’s overall financial condition, resources and payment record, support available from financial guarantors and the fair market value of collateral. These
factors are combined to estimate the probability and severity of inherent losses. Large groups of smaller balance, homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated
for impairment. Accordingly, the Bank does not separately evaluate individual consumer and residential loans for impairment. The formula allowance component is
used for estimating the loss on internally risk rated loans exclusive of those identified as impaired. The loans meeting the Bank’s internal criteria for classification,
such as special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, as well as specifically identified impaired loans, are segregated from performing loans within the
portfolio. These internally classified loans are then grouped by loan type (commercial, commercial real estate, commercial construction, residential real estate,
residential construction or installment). Each loan type is assigned an allowance factor based on management’s estimate of the associated risk, complexity and
size of the individual loans within the particular loan category.
Classified loans are assigned a higher allowance factor than non-classified loans due to management’s concerns regarding collectibility or management’s
knowledge of particular elements surrounding the borrower. Allowance factors increase with the worsening of the internal risk rating.
The pooled formula component is used to estimate the losses inherent in the pools of nonclassified loans. These loans are then also segregated by loan type and
allowance factors are assigned by management based on delinquencies, loss history, trends in volume and terms of loans, effects of changes in lending policy, the
experience and depth of management, national and local economic trends, concentrations of credit, results of the loan review system and the effect of external
factors (i.e. competition and regulatory requirements). Current economic conditions take into account the average unemployment rate for Wabash County, Illinois
and for the nation, with the most significance given to the Wabash County data. The allowance factors assigned differ by loan type.
Allowance factors and overall size of the allowance may change from period to period based on management’s assessment of the above-described factors and
the relative weights given to each factor. In addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses. These agencies may require
the Bank to make additions to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments of collectibility based on information available to them at the time of their
examination.
Loans are placed into a nonaccruing status and classified as nonperforming when the principal or interest has been in default for a period of 90 days or more
unless the obligation is well secured and in the process of collection. A debt is “well secured” if it is secured by (i) pledges of real or personal property, including
securities, that have a realizable value sufficient to discharge the debt, (including accrued interest), in full, or (ii) the guarantee of a financially responsible party. A
debt is “in the process of collection” if collection on the debt is proceeding in due course either through legal action, including judgment enforcement procedure,
or, in appropriate circumstances, through collection efforts not involving legal action which are reasonably expected to result in repayment of the debt or in its
restoration to a current status.
Loans classified as substandard or worse are considered for impairment testing. A substandard loan shows signs of continuing negative financial trends and
unprofitability and therefore, is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any.
The borrower on such loans typically exhibits one or more of the following characteristics: financial ratios and profitability margins are well below industry average;
a negative cash flow position exists; debt service capacity is insufficient to the service debt and an improvement in the cash flow position is unlikely within the next
twelve months; secondary and tertiary means of debt repayment are weak. Loans classified as substandard are characterized by the probability that the Bank will
not collect am=ounts due according to the contractual terms or sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Loss potential, while existing with respect to the aggregate amount of substandard (or worse) loans, does not have to exist in any individual assets classified as
substandard. Such credits are also evaluated for nonaccrual status.
Impaired loans include loans that have been classified as substandard or worse. However, certain loans have been paying as agreed and have remained current,
with some financial issues related to cash flow that have caused some concern as to the ability of the borrower to perform in accordance with the current loan
terms but not to such an extent as to require the loan be put into a nonaccruing status. Cash receipts on impaired loans are recorded as interest income as received,
unless the loan is in a nonaccrual status.
The Bank’s charge-off policy states after all collection efforts have been exhausted and the loan is deemed to be a loss, it will be charged to the Bank’s established
allowance for loan losses. Consumer loans subject to the Uniform Retail Credit Classification are charged-off as follows: (a) closed end loans are charged-off
no later than 120 days after becoming delinquent, (b) consumer loans to borrowers who subsequently declare bankruptcy, where the Company is an unsecured
creditor, are charged-off within 60 days of receipt of the notification from the bankruptcy court, (c) fraudulent loans are charged-off within 90 days of discovery and
(d) death of a borrower will cause a charge-off to be incurred at such time an actual loss is determined. All other types of loans are generally evaluated for loss
potential at the 90th day past due threshold, and any loss is recognized no later than the 120th day past due threshold; each loss is evaluated on its specific facts
regarding the appropriate timing to recognize the loss.
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Bank Owned Life Insurance
The Bank purchased single-premium life insurance on certain employees of the Bank. Appreciation in value of the insurance policy is classified in noninterest
income. These insurance policies can be surrendered subject to certain surrender penalties applied by the insurance carriers, as well as potential income taxes to
be paid.
Premises and Equipment
Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The provision for depreciation is computed using straight-line
and accelerated methods based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 5 to 10 years for bank equipment and 39 years for bank buildings.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the terms of the leases or their estimated useful lives. Expenditures for improvements, which extend the
life of an asset, are capitalized and depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life. Gains or losses realized on the disposition of properties and equipment are
reflected in the statements of income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expenses as incurred.
Foreclosed Properties
Foreclosed properties include properties that have been acquired in complete or partial satisfaction of a debt. These properties are initially recorded at fair value on
the date of acquisition. Any write-downs at the time of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to acquisition, a valuation allowance
is established, if necessary, to report these assets at the lower of (a) fair value minus estimated costs to sell or (b) cost. Gains and losses realized on the sale, and
any adjustments resulting from periodic re-evaluation of this property are included in noninterest income or expense, as appropriate. Net costs of maintaining and
operating the properties are expensed as incurred. There were no foreclosed properties at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
Revenue recognition:
In the ordinary course of business, the Company recognizes income from various revenue generating activities. Certain revenues are generated from contracts with
customers where such revenues are recognized when, or as, services or products are transferred to customers for amounts to which the Company expects to be
entitled. Certain specific policies related to revenue recognition from contracts with customers include:
Service fees
Service fees include charges related to depository accounts under standard service agreements. Fees are generally recognized as services are delivered to or
consumed by the customer or as penalties are assessed.
ATM Interchange Fees
ATM interchange fees revenue includes interchange fees from ATM cards processed through card association networks, and other transaction fees. The Bank
records interchange fees as services are provided.
Income Taxes
Provisions for income taxes are based on taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred taxes on temporary differences between the amount of
taxable income and pretax financial income and between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are included in the consolidated financial statements at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred
tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through
the provision for income taxes.
In addition, deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Bancorp files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiary. The Bank does not have uncertain tax positions that
are deemed material, and did not recognize any adjustments for unrecognized tax benefits. The Bank’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties on income taxes
in other noninterest expenses. The Bank remains subject to examination for income tax returns for the years ending after December 31, 2016.
Fair Value Measurements
The Company follows the guidance of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, and FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement. This guidance permits entities to measure
many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.
This guidance clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants. Under this guidance, fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance establishes a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
There are no recent accounting pronouncements that pertain to the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.
Effect Of Covid-19 Pandemic
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) recognized COVID-19 as a global pandemic, prompting many national, regional, and local governments
to implement preventative or protective measures, such as travel and business restrictions, temporary store closures, and wide-sweeping quarantines and stay-athome orders. As a result, COVID-19 and the related restrictive measures have had a significant adverse impact upon many sectors of the economy. We believe the
ultimate financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Bank is likely to be determined by factors which are uncertain, unpredictable and outside of the control
of the Bank. The situation surrounding COVID-19 remains fluid and, if disruptions do arise, they could materially adversely affect future revenues.
Note 2 – Restriction on Cash and Due from Banks
As announced on March 15, 2020, the federal reserve board reduced the requirement ratio to zero percent effective March 26, 2020. Doing so freed up liquidity
within the banking system to support lending to households and businesses. For the reserve maintenance periods in effect at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Bank was required was required to maintain balances of $0 and $639,000, respectively, with the Federal Reserve Bank.
Note 3 – Certificates of Deposit
The Bank had certificates of deposits totaling $2,750,000 and $3,490,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, in the accompanying financial statements. The
certificates bear interest at rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.10% and have maturities ranging from February 2021 to March 2026, with penalties for early withdrawal.
Any penalties for early withdrawal would not have material effect on the financial statements.
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Note 4 – Debt Securities Available-for-Sale

Note 4available-for-sale
– Debt Securities
The amortized cost of securites
andAvailable-for-Sale
their approximate fair values are as follows:
The amortized cost of securites available-for-sale and their approximate fair values are as
follows:
December 31, 2020

Amortized Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Available-for-sale securities
State and municipal securities
U.S. government and agency securities
Mortgage backed securities

$29,219,450
6,816,792
25,400,677

$ 1,280,601
275,862
430,377

$

9,215
0
41,265

$ 30,490,836
7,092,654
25,789,789

Total available-for-sale securities

$61,436,919

$ 1,986,840

$

50,480

$ 63,373,279

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

December 31, 2019

Amortized Cost

Available-for-sale securities
State and municipal securities
U.S. government and agency securities
Mortgage backed securities

$25,983,623
12,922,279
9,392,268

$

624,312
111,129
74,136

$

16,243
10,625
33,179

$ 26,591,692
13,022,783
9,433,225

Total available-for-sale securities

$48,298,170

$

809,577

$

60,047

$ 49,047,700

December 31, 2020
Amortized Cost

Fair Value

December 31, 2019

Fair Value

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

Available-for-Sale
Due in one year or less
$ 1,025,916
$ 1,028,398
$ 3,223,081
$
Due from one to five years
1,321,655
1,339,935
17,987,393
Due in more than five
to ten years
23,415,282INC. 24,533,732
10,986,659
ALLENDALE
BANCORP,
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Due after ten years
10,273,390
10,681,426
6,708,768
Subtotal NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
36,036,243 FINANCIAL
37,583,491 STATEMENTS
38,905,901
Mortgage backed securities

25,400,676
December
31, 2020 25,789,788
and 2019

Total

$61,436,919

$ 63,373,279

3,239,387
18,191,140
11,386,032
6,797,917
39,614,476

9,392,269

9,433,224

$ 48,298,170

$ 49,047,700

Note 4 – Debt Securities Available-for-Sale (Continued)
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
19 with or without call or prepayment
penalties.
Investment securities valued at approximately $38,300,000 and $32,500,000 at December 31,

2020 atand
2019, respectively
were
pledgedattoDecember
secure 31,
public
and for other
purposes
Investment securities valued
approximately
$38,300,000 and
$32,500,000
2020 deposits,
and 2019, respectively
were pledged
to secure public deposits,
and for other purposesrequired
required oror
permitted
by law.
permitted
by law.
Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2020 and 2019 aggregated by investment category and length of time that
individual securities have
been in a continuous
lossto
position,
follows:
Information
pertaining
securities
with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2020 and 2019

aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous loss position, follows:
Less Than 12 Months

12 Months or Greater

Gross

Total

Gross

Gross

Fair

Unrealized

Fair

Unrealized

Fair

Unrealized

Value

Losses

Value

Losses

Value

Losses

December 31, 2020
Available-for-sale securities

$

0

$

0

$

7,647,505

$

(50,048)

$

7,647,505

$

(50,048)

$

1,001,207

$

(952)

$

10,972,867

$

(59,094)

$

11,974,074

$

(60,046)

December 31, 2019
Available-for-sale securities

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly
basis, and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation.
Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been
less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent
and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to
allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
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At December 31, 2020, the 17 debt securities with unrealized losses have depreciated 0.66%
from the Bank’s amortized cost basis. At December 31, 2019 there were 27 debt securities with
unrealized losses that had depreciated 0.50% from the Bank’s amortized cost basis.
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December 31, 2020 and 2019
Note 4 – Debt Securities Available-for-Sale (Concluded)

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market concerns
warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition
and near-term prospects
of thesecurities
issuer, and (3)
intent and ability
the Bank
investment in the
a period
time sufficient to allow for any
These
aretheguaranteed
by ofeither
theto retain
U.S. its
Government
or issuer
otherforstate
or oflocal
anticipated recovery in fair value.

governments. These unrealized losses relate principally to current interest rates for similar types

securities.
In analyzing
an issuer’s
condition,
At December 31, 2020,ofthe
17 debt securities
with unrealized
lossesfinancial
have depreciated
0.66%management
from the Bank’sconsiders
amortized whether
cost basis.the
At December 31, 2019 there
were 27 debt securities
with unrealized
losses that
had depreciated
0.50% from the
Bank’s
amortized
cost basis.
securities
are issued
by the
federal government
or its
agencies,
whether
downgrades by bond

rating agencies
have
occurred,
and or
theother
results
of the issuer’s
financial losses
condition.
These securities are guaranteed
by either
the U.S.
Government
stateoforreviews
local governments.
These unrealized
relate As
principally to current interest
rates for similar types management
of securities. In analyzing
issuer’sto
financial
management
considers
the securities are
issued
has the anability
hold condition,
debt securities
classified
aswhether
available-for-sale
for
the by the federal government
or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer’s financial condition. As management has the
foreseeable
future,
no declines are
to be other-than-temporary.
ability to hold debt securities
classified
as available-for-sale
fordeemed
the foreseeable
future, no declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary.
Note 5 – Loans Receivable
The recorded investment
in loans
by segment
in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of the following at December 31, 2020 and 2019:
Note
5 – Loans
Receivable

The recorded investment in loans by segment in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of the
following at December 31, 2020 and 2019:
2020
Construction Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Other Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Commercial and Industrial
Consumer and Installment
Leases
Subtotal
Allowance for Loan Loss
Total

$

2019

773,899
61,922,411

$

51,812,409
57,040,149
17,421,161
596,724
189,566,753
(2,335,550)

1,345,678
54,665,143
52,653,622
45,247,083
16,396,030
768,668
171,076,224
(2,074,196)

ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC.$ AND
SUBSIDIARIES
187,231,203
$ 169,002,028
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December 31, 2020 and 2019
Age Analysis of Past DueNote
Financing
Receivables
by Class(Continued)
5 – Loans
Receivable
The following tables include an aging analysis of the recorded investment of past due loans as of
December 31, 2020 andAge
2019:Analysis of Past Due Financing Receivables by Class

The following tables include an aging analysis of the recorded investment of past due loans as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

December 31, 2020
Construction real estate:
Residential
Other
Other real estate:
Farmland
Residential
Other
Commercial
Consumer:
Automobile
Other
Leases
Total

30-59 Days
Past Due

60-89 Days
Past Due

Greater Than
90 Days

$

$

$

$

0
0

0
0

0
0

Total Past
Due
$

0
0

21Loans
Total

Current
$

525,211
248,688

$

525,211
248,688

0
73,841
0
51,205

0
30,549
0
15,258

131,572
518,882
0
182,846

131,572
623,272
0
249,309

48,666,597
51,189,137
13,124,242
56,790,840

48,798,169
51,812,409
13,124,242
57,040,149

46,675
133,966
0

0
12,774
0

61,115
27,020
0

107,790
173,760
0

6,439,566
10,700,045
596,724

6,547,356
10,873,805
596,724

921,435

$ 1,285,703

$ 188,281,050

$ 189,566,753

Current

Total Loans

305,687

$

58,581

$

Age Analysis of Past Due Financing Receivables by Class (Concluded)
December 31, 2019
Construction real estate:
Residential
Other
Other real estate:
Farmland
Residential
Other
Commercial
Consumer:
Automobile

30-59 Days
Past Due

60-89 Days
Past Due

Greater Than
90 Days

$

$

$

0
0
0
98,574
14,000
290,632
177,477

0
0
95,584
0
0
80,201

.

0
0

Total Past
Due
$

0
0

$

1,041,835
303,843

$

1,041,835
303,843

140,000
487,871
0
0

235,584
586,445
14,000
370,833

43,031,805
52,067,177
11,383,754
44,876,250

43,267,389
52,653,622
11,397,754
45,247,083

28,019

205,496

6,055,944

6,261,440
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Residential
Other
Commercial
Consumer:
Automobile
Other
Leases
Total

$

73,841
0
51,205

30,549
0
15,258

518,882
0
182,846

623,272
0
249,309

51,189,137
13,124,242
56,790,840

51,812,409
13,124,242
57,040,149

46,675
133,966
0

0
12,774
0

61,115
27,020
0

107,790
173,760
0

6,439,566
10,700,045
596,724

6,547,356
10,873,805
596,724

921,435

$ 1,285,703

$ 188,281,050

$ 189,566,753

Current

Total Loans

305,687

$

58,581

$

Age Analysis of Past Due Financing Receivables by Class (Concluded)
December 31, 2019
Construction real estate:
Residential
Other
Other real estate:
Farmland
Residential
Other
Commercial
Consumer:
Automobile
Other
Leases
Total

30-59 Days
Past Due

60-89 Days
Past Due

Greater Than
90 Days

$

$

$

0
0

0
0

0
98,574
14,000
290,632
177,477
113,823
0
$

694,506

0
0

$

0
0

$

1,041,835
303,843

$

1,041,835
303,843

95,584
0
0
80,201

140,000
487,871
0
0

235,584
586,445
14,000
370,833

43,031,805
52,067,177
11,383,754
44,876,250

43,267,389
52,653,622
11,397,754
45,247,083

6,770
0

28,019
123,072
0

205,496
243,665
0

6,055,944
9,890,925
768,668

6,261,440
10,134,590
768,668

778,962

$ 1,656,023

$ 169,420,201

$ 171,076,224

.

$

Total Past
Due

182,555

$
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The Bank’s recorded investment in loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $229,618 and $52,757,
respectively.
ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Impaired Loans

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables include the recorded investment and unpaid principal balances for impairedfinancing receivables with the associated allowance amount at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Bank determined the specific
impairment
December
31, allowance
2020 and based
2019 on the factors discussed in Note 1. Also presented at December 31,
2020 and 2019 is the average recorded investment of the impaired loans and the related amount of interest recognized within the period that the impaired loans
were impaired. The average balances are calculated based on the month-end balances of the financing receivables of the period reported.

Note 5 – Loans Receivable (Continued)
Impaired Loans (Continued)
Impaired loans as of
December 31, 2020
With No Related Allowance:
Other real estate:
Commercial
Residential
Commercial and Industrial
Consumer and Installment:
Automobile
Other

$

With an Allowance:
Other real estate:
Residential
Commercial
Commercial and Industrial
Consumer and Installment:
Automobile
Other
Total:
Construction real estate
Other real estate
Commercial and Industrial
Consumer and Installment
Financing leases

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Recorded
Investment

$
$
$
$
$

131,573
196,880
50,295

$

131,573
196,880
50,295

Average
Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

$

0
0
0

$

99,393
192,765
135,015

Interest
Income
Recognized

$

0
0
0

42,152
0

42,152
0

0
0

37,011
0

0
0

246,124
0
866,138

246,124
0
866,138

78,662
0
250,000

227,220
0
958,024

0
0
0

0
24,795

0
24,795

0
6,000

34,307
24,795

0
0

0
78,662
250,000
6,000
0

$
0
$
519,378
$ 1,093,039
$
96,113
$
0

0
574,577
916,433
66,947
0

$
$
$
$
$

0
574,577
916,433
66,947
0

$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

24

24

0
0
0
0
0
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December 31, 2020 and 2019
Note 5 – Loans Receivable (Continued)
Impaired Loans (Concluded)
Impaired loans as of
December 31, 2019
With No Related Allowance:
Other real estate:
Commercial
Residential
Commercial and Industrial
Consumer and Installment:
Automobile
Other
With an Allowance:
Other real estate:
Residential
Commercial
Commercial and Industrial
Consumer and Installment:
Automobile
Other

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Recorded
Investment

$

376,819
171,868
490,031

$

376,819
171,868
490,031

Average
Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

$

0
0
0

$

370,569
103,434
655,384

Interest
Income
Recognized

$

0
0
0

28,946
0

28,946
0

0
0

14,473
412

0

0
316,003
575,647

0
316,003
575,647

0
123,563
275,265

0
190,574
308,019

0
0
0

80,620
0

80,620
0

23,152
0

40,300
0

0
0

Total:
Construction real estate
$
0 $
0 $
0 $
0
Other real estate
$ 864,690 $ 864,690 $ 123,563 $
664,577
Commercial and Industrial
$ 1,065,678 $ 1,065,678 $ 275,265 $
963,403
Consumer and Installment
$
109,566
$
109,566
$
23,152
$
ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 55,185
Financing leases
$
0 $
0 $
0 $
0

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$
$
$
$
$

0
0
0
0
0

December 31, 2020 and 2019
Nonaccrual Loans

Note 5 – Loans Receivable (Concluded)

The following table represents the total recorded investment in loans on nonaccrual at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The balances are presented by class of loan.

Nonaccrual Loans
The following table represents the total recorded investment in loans on nonaccrual at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The balances are presented by class of loan.
25

Other real estate:
Residential
Farmland
Other
Commercial
Consumer:
Automobile
Other

12/31/2020

12/31/2019

$

$

443,004
131,573
206,819
709,614

487,871
140,000
236,819
1,065,677

42,152
24,795

109,564
0

$ 1,557,957

$ 2,039,931

25
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December 31, 2020 and 2019
Note 6 – Allowance for Loan Losses
Loans by Segment
Note 6 – Allowance for Loan Losses

The total allowance reflects management’s estimate of loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio
at the statement of financial position condition date. The Bank considers the allowance for loan
losses as detailed below adequate to cover loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio at
The total allowance reflects management’s
estimate
of loan
inherent
the loan
the statement
of financial
December
31, 2020.
The losses
following
tablesinpresent,
byportfolio
portfolioatsegment,
the changes
in the position condition date. The Bank
considers the allowance for loan losses
as detailed
below
adequate
to cover investment
loan lossesininherent
theyear
loanended
portfolio
at December
31, 2020. The following tables
allowance
for loan
losses
and the recorded
loans forinthe
December
31,
present, by portfolio segment, the changes in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:
2020 and 2019:
Loans by Segment

Loans by Segment as of
December 31, 2020

Construction
Real Estate

Allowance for Loan Losses:
Beginning Balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision
Ending Balance

$

Other Real
Estate

$

750,917
(43,769)
3,300
90,973
801,421

Consumer
and
Installment

$

$

$

893,690
(185,000)
4,200
136,194
849,084

Leases

Total

$

Ending Balance,
Individually Evaluated for
Impairment

$

0

$

78,662

$

250,000

$

6,000

$

0

$

0

$

334,662

Ending Balance,
Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment

$

3,872

$

722,759

$

599,084

$

416,602

$

0

$ 258,571

$

2,000,888

Ending Balance, Loans
Acquired with Deteriorated
Credit Quality

$

0

$

0

$

0

$

0

$

0

$

$

0

$

773,899

$ 113,734,820

$ 57,040,149

$

$

292,854
(111,867)
55,851
185,764
422,602

Unallocated

749
0
0
3,123
3,872

Loans:
Ending Balance

$

Commercial
and Industrial

$ 17,421,161

$ 135,986
0
0
122,585
$ 258,571

$

$

0
0
0
0
0

$

2,074,196
(340,636)
63,351
538,639
2,335,550

0

$ 596,724

$ 189,566,753

Ending Balance,
Individually Evaluated for
ALLENDALE
BANCORP,
INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Impairment
$
0 $
781,396 $ 709,614 $
66,947 $
0

$

Ending Balance, NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment
$ 773,899 December
$ 112,953,424 31,
$ 56,330,535
17,354,214 $ 596,724
2020 and$ 2019

1,557,957

$ 188,008,796

Ending Balance, Loans

Acquired
with Deterioratedfor Loan Losses (Continued)
Note
6 – Allowance
Credit Quality

$

0

$

0

$

0

0

$

$

$

0

0

Loans by Segment (Concluded)
Loans by Segment as of
December 31, 2019
Allowance for Loan Losses:
Beginning Balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision
Ending Balance

Construction
Real Estate

$

$

663,297
(4,251)
320
91,551
750,917

Commercial
and Industrial

Consumer
and
Installment

$

$

$

659,168
(90,390)
10,153
314,759
893,690

27
Leases
$

$

266,865
(54,004)
57,287
22,706
292,854

Unallocated

Total

$

858
0
0
(109)
749

Ending Balance,
Individually Evaluated for
Impairment

$

0

$

123,563

$

275,265

$

23,152

$

0

$

0

$

421,980

Ending Balance,
Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment

$

749

$

627,354

$

618,425

$

269,702

$

0

$ 135,986

$

1,652,216

Ending Balance, Loans
Acquired with Deteriorated
Credit Quality

$

0

$

0

$

0

$

0

$

0

$

$

0

Loans:
Ending Balance

$

Other Real
Estate

$

$

0
0
0
0
0

(10,520)
0
0
146,506
$ 135,986

$

1,579,668
(148,645)
67,760
575,413
2,074,196

0

$

$ 1,345,678

$ 107,318,765

$ 45,247,083

$ 16,396,030

$ 768,668

$ 171,076,224

Ending Balance,
Individually Evaluated for
Impairment

$

$

864,690

$ 1,065,677

$

$

$

Ending Balance,
Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment

$ 1,345,678

$ 106,454,075

$ 44,181,406

$ 16,287,434

Ending Balance, Loans
Acquired with Deteriorated
Credit Quality

$

$

$

$

0

0

0

0

108,596

0

0

2,038,963

$ 768,668

$ 169,037,261

$

$

0

0

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no commitments to lend additional funds toborrowers whose loans have been modified.
Changes in Accounting Methodology
The Bank has not revised its methodology for calculation of the allowance for loan losses.
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Credit Quality Information
The following table represents credit exposures by loan rating category for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Bank’s internal credit exposure
grading system is based on experiences with similarly graded loans. All commercial credit relationships with a minimumaggregate balance of $100,000 or greater
are reviewed on a semi-annual basis. Based on this review, a risk rating is applied to each credit relationship.
The Bank’s internal risk ratings are as follows:
Pass – Credits will range from minimal risk to average risk to acceptable risk. At a minimum, these borrowers will have satisfactory asset quality and liquidity,
adequate debt capacity and coverage, and good management. A year of losses or fluctuating earnings may be reflected but borrowers have sufficient strength and
financial flexibility to offset these events. Performance is generally in accordance with company projections.
Watch – Credits have specific weaknesses which can be corrected and are not seriously harmful to the Bank’s overall position in the credit. These borrowers
have limited additional debt capacity, modest coverage and average or below average asset quality, margins, and market share. Some management weaknesses
or a lack of depth exists. A lack of current financial statement/information may limit the Bank’s ability to assess repayment. Insufficient support in the credit
file or other technical exceptions which may impair the credit file or other technical exceptions which may impair the credit-worthiness of the borrower may
exist. Inconsistent or declining trends, strained cash flow, and/or high leverage may be evident and indicate an above-average risk. Adverse outside events or a
management change may also indicate above-average risk. Also, the borrower may beperforming as agreed but may be adversely affected by developing problems.
Additional monitoring may be required.
Special Mention – Credits to borrowers who exhibit potential weaknesses or downward trends deserving Bank management’s close attention. Loans in this
category are currentlyprotected but may impair the Bank’s credit position if not corrected in a timely manner. A weak or speculative market or economic conditions
exist which may, in the future, adversely affect the obligor. No loss of principal or interest is expected but these borrowers are potentially weak and maintain a
marginal position. Adverse trends in operating results and/or financial ratios are of a magnitude and degree that warrant this rating. Impropercontrol over collateral,
lack of proper documentation, and/or a notable deviation from Bank policy or prudent lending practices may be present. The borrower could be in a turnaround
situation. Any credit categorized as Special Mention by regulatory authorities would be classified by the Bank as special mention.
Substandard – Credits have well-defined weaknesses which jeopardize repayment. These credits are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or the collateral pledged. Although loss does not have to exist in any one asset, there is a possibility of a partial loss of interest and/or
principal which will occur if deficiencies are not corrected. It is not necessary for a loan to have an identifiable loss in order to be rated Substandard. A credit may
be current and supported by collateral or a contingent obligor but the rating may still be warranted. Characteristics of this type of credit would include:
reliance on a secondary
sourceBANCORP,
of repayment,
deterioration in financial condition or cash flow, questionable repayment capacity based on delinquency
ALLENDALE
INC. significant
AND SUBSIDIARIES
status, and/or poor performance. Any credit classified as substandard by the regulatory authorities and any consumer loan 90 days or more past due would be
NOTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
classified by the
BankTO
as CONSOLIDATED
substandard.
.
December
31, 2020
Doubtful – Credits have the traits
mentioned
inand
the 2019
Substandard category in addition to weaknesses which make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable
or improbable.If serious problems exist and the potential for loss of principal is likely, the Bank would classify the credit as doubtful. The possibility of loss is
extremely likely, but is not identified at this point because of pending factors. These factors could include: merger and/or acquisition, liquidation procedures, a
Note 6 –injection,
Allowance
for Loan Losses
(Continued)
capital
perfecting
liens on
additional collateral, and/or refinancing plans. Management has demonstrated a history of failing to meet agreements. Any
credit classified as doubtful by the regulatory authorities would also be classified by the Bank as doubtful.
Loss – Credits are generally uncollectible and are no longer considered a bankable asset. This

rating–does
not mean
loan has no
recovery or salvage
value.
However,
it is not practicable
or asset. This rating does not mean a loan has no recovery or salvage value.
Loss
Credits
are agenerally
uncollectible
and are
no longer
considered
a bankable
ALLENDALE
BANCORP,
AND
SUBSIDIARIES
desirable to
off the or
lossdesirable
credit eventothough
recovery
However,
it defer
is notwriting
practicable
defer partial
writing
off themay
lossoccur.
creditLoans
evendo
though partial recovery
may occur.
LoansINC.
do not
remain
as booked assets while
not remainrecoveries
as booked assets
while long-term
recoveries
attempted.
Credits
this category with a recommendation for charge-off. In order to affect timely recognition of
long-term
are attempted.
Credits
in thisare
category
should
beinaccompanied
NOTES
TO
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
ALLENDALE
BANCORP,
INC.
should
be accompanied
recommendation
for charge-off.
In off
order
to
affect
timely
loan
losses,
credits withwith
thisarating
should normally
be charged
when
identified.
As AND
such,SUBSIDIARIES
the Loss rating is a one-time designation. This
category should include
recognitioncredits
of loan120
losses,
withpast
this due.
ratingAsshould
normally 31,
be 2020
charged
whenthe Bank had no loans withDecember
consumer
dayscredits
or more
of December
andoff2019,
a loss rating
that and
had2019
not been charged off. As such,
31, 2020
NOTES
TO
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
this
category
the table
below.
identified.
Ashas
such,not
thebeen
Loss included
rating is ainone-time
designation.
This
category
should include
consumer credits 120 days or more past due. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had
December
2020 and 2019
no loans with a loss rating that had not been charged off. As such, this category
has not31,
been
Note 6 – Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)
included in the table below.

Grade:
Pass
Watch
Special
Mention
Substandard
Doubtful
Total

Credit Exposure
Credit Exposure
Note
6 – Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)
Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade
Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade
As of December 31, 2020
As of December 31, 2020 (Concluded)
Credit Exposure
Construction Real Estate
Other Real Estate Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade
Consumer and Installment
Commercial and
As of December 31, 2020 (Concluded)
Residential
Other
Farmland
Residential
OtherConsumer and Installment
Industrial
Automobile
Other
Grade:
Commercial and
Financing
$ 353,107
$
248,688
$ 46,426,904
$ Industrial
51,026,146
$ 12,723,091
Pass
55,690,662
6,493,363
$
10,849,010
Automobile
Other $
Leases $
172,104
0
323,714
132,213
17,108
Watch
561,063
0
0
Grade:
Pass
$
55,690,662
$
6,493,363 Special
$
10,849,010
$
596,724
0
0
1,915,979
0
0
44,110
0
0
Watch
561,063
0 Mention
0
0
0
0
131,572
651,660
384,043
Substandard
744,314
53,994
24,794
Special
0
0
0
2,390
0
0
0
0
Mention
44,110
0 Doubtful
0
0
$ 525,211
$
248,688
$ 48,798,169
$ 51,812,409
Total
$
57,040,149
$0
6,547,357
$
10,873,804
Substandard
744,314 $ 13,124,242
53,994
24,794

Doubtful
Total

Grade:
Pass
Watch
Special
Mention
Substandard
Doubtful
Total

0
57,040,149

0
6,547,357

0
10,873,804

Financing
Leases
$

$

0
$1,041,835

$

$

$

0 31
0
303,843
$ 43,267,389

0
$ 52,653,622

$

0
0
0
596,724

0
596,724

Credit Exposure
Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade
As of December 31, 2019
Credit Exposure
Construction
Other Real Estate
Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned
Grade Real Estate
As of December 31, 2019
Residential
Other
Farmland
Residential
Construction Real Estate
Other Real Estate
Grade:
Pass
$1,041,835
$ 270,565
$ 41,108,030
$ 52,012,004
Residential
Other
Farmland
Residential
Other
Watch
0
33,278
1,502,791
0
Special
$1,041,835
$ 270,565
$ 41,108,030
$ 52,012,004
$11,160,935
Mention
0 0
0 0
0
0
0
33,278
1,502,791
Substandard
0
0
656,568
641,618
Doubtful 0
0 0
0 0
0
0
0
0
Total
$1,041,835
$ 52,653,622
0
0
656,568
641,618 $ 303,843
236,819 $ 43,267,389
$

596,724
0

Other
$11,160,935
0
0
236,819
0
$11,397,754

0
$11,397,754

32
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Note 6 – Allowance for Loan Losses (Concluded)
December 31, 2020 and 2019
Credit Exposure

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade
Note 6 – Allowance for Loan Losses (Concluded)
As of December 31, 2019 (Concluded)
Consumer
and Installment
Credit
Exposure

Commercial
and Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade
Credit
Industrial As of December
Automobile
Other
31, 2019 (Concluded)

Financing
Leases

Grade:
Consumer and Installment
Pass
$ 41,898,344
$ 6,222,190
$ 10,043,460 Financing
$ 768,668
Commercial
and
Watch
1,949,735 Automobile
0
0 Leases
0
Industrial
Other
Grade:Special
0 $ 6,222,190
0 $ 10,043,460
0 $ 768,668
0
Pass Mention $ 41,898,344
Substandard 1,949,735
1,399,004
39,250
91,130
0
Watch
0
0
0
Doubtful
0
0
0
0
Special
Total
$ 45,247,083
$ 6,261,440
$ 10,134,590
$ 768,668
Mention
0
0
0
0
Substandard
1,399,004
39,250
91,130
0
Doubtful
0
0
0
0
Note
7 – Loans to Related Parties
Total
$ 45,247,083
$ 6,261,440
$ 10,134,590
$ 768,668

The Bank has entered into transactions with certain employees, directors, executive officers,
significant stockholders, and their affiliates. Such transactions were made in the ordinary course
Note 7 – Loans to Related Parties
Note 7 – Loans to Related Parties
of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and
collateral,
those employees,
prevailing
atdirectors,
the same
time
for officers,
comparable
transactions
with other
customers,
The
Bank has
entered
into transactions
with
certain
employees,
directors,
executive
officers,
The Bank has entered into transactions
withas
certain
executive
significant
stockholders,
and
their affiliates. Such transactions were
made in the ordinary course of
business
substantially
thetheir
same
terms and
conditions,
including
asother
those prevailing at the same time
and didon
not,
in the opinion
of management,
involve
more
than
normal
credit
riskcollateral,
or present
significant
stockholders,
and
affiliates.
Such
transactions
wereinterest
made inrates
the and
ordinary
course
for comparable transactions of
with
other
customers,
and
did
not,
in
the
opinion
of
management,
involve
more
than
normal
credit
risk or present other unfavorable
unfavorable
features.
The the
following
is a summary
of the activity
involving
loans
toand
related
business
on
substantially
same
terms
and
conditions,
including
interest
rates
features. The following is a summary of the activity involving loans to related parties.
parties.as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with other customers,
collateral,
and did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than normal credit risk or present other
2019 to related
unfavorable features. The following is a summary of the2020
activity involving loans
ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
parties.
Balance, January 1,
$
3,965,524
$
4,301,011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
2020 2,074,548
2019 2,645,899
New loans
Less loan repayments December 31, 2020 and
(1,639,533)
(2,981,386)
2019
Balance, January 1,
$
3,965,524
$
4,301,011
$2,074,548
4,400,539
$2,645,899
3,965,524
NewBalance,
loans December 31
Less loan repayments
(1,639,533)
(2,981,386)
Note 8 – Premises and Equipment
Note 8 – Premises and Equipment
Balance, December 31
$
4,400,539
$
3,965,524
Components of premises and equipment included in the consolidated balance sheets at
Components of premises and equipment
in and
the 2019
consolidated
balance sheets at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:
Decemberincluded
31, 2020
were as follows:
2020

Cost:
Land
Bank premises
Equipment
Total cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Net book value

$

$

2019

66,000
6,649,203
4,188,199
10,903,402
(6,107,210)

$

4,796,192

$

66,000
6,662,381
3,836,219
10,564,600
(5,770,993)

33
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4,793,607

Note 9 – Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Note 9 – Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

ALLENDALE
INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago
(FHLBC),BANCORP,
the Bank is required
to purchase
a statutory amount of stock which is used to collateralize
a member
of the Federal
Home Loan
Bank amount
of Chicago
(FHLBC),
Bank
is required
borrowings or advances from theAs
FHLBC.
All members
must maintain
a minimum
of capital
stockthe
equal
to the
greater ofto5% of borrowings from the FHLBC
purchase
statutory
amount
of
stock
which
is
used
to
collateralize
borrowings
advances
from
or the member’s “floor” as established
by athe
FHLBC.
The
floor
represents
the
amount
of
capital
stock
held by or
each
member
at the close of business on July 23,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2008.
the FHLBC. All members must maintain a minimum amount of capital stock equal to the
greater of 5% of borrowings from the FHLBC or the member’s “floor” as established by the

December
31, 2020toand
2019advances exceed this floor, the member is able to redeem the
Beginning July 24, 2008 and to the extent that a member’s required
stock purchases
support
Theif floor
represents
the amountnooflonger
capitalrequire
stock held
each member
at the
incremental capital stock back toFHLBC.
the FHLBC
the amount
of borrowings
it. At by
December
31, 2020
andclose
2019ofadvances from the FHLBC totaled
businessThis
on July
23,is2008.
$4,561,515 and $5,072,278, respectively.
stock
recorded at cost and does not have a readily determinable market value.
It is classified as a restricted investment
because
it can
sold
only tothat
theaFHLBC
or torequired
another stock
member
institution
at its par value of $100 per share. None
Beginning
July Deposits
24,
2008beand
toback
the extent
member’s
purchases
to support
Note
10 –FHLBC
Time
of this stock is pledged as collateral
for
advances. For December 31, 2020 and 2019, the recorded investment in FHLBC capital stock totaled $435,411 and
advances
exceed
this
floor,
the
member
is
able
to
redeem
the
incremental
capital
stock
back
to
$221,676, respectively.

theaggregate
FHLBC if amount
the amount
of borrowings
no longer
require it. each
At December
31, 2020 and
2019
The
of short-term
jumbo
time deposits,
with a minimum
denomination
FHLBC totaled
$4,561,515and
and$24,102,000
$5,072,278, atrespectively.
This
stock
ofadvances
$100,000,from
wasthe
approximately
$15,508,000
December 31,
2020
andis2019,
recorded at cost and does not have a readily determinable market value.
respectively.
The aggregate amount of short-term
jumbo time deposits, each with a minimum denomination of $100,000, was approximately $15,508,000 and $24,102,000 at
Note 10 – Time Deposits

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. At December 31, 2020, the scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

is classified
a restricted
investment
because it
sold back
onlyastofollows:
the FHLBC or to
AtItDecember
31,as2020,
the scheduled
maturities
ofcan
timebedeposits
were

another member institution at its par value of $100 per share. None of this stock is pledged as
collateral for FHLBC advances. For December 31, 2020 and 2019, the recorded investment in
2021$435,411 and $221,676, respectively.
$
36,972,357
FHLBC capital stock totaled

2022
2023
2024
2025

Total

Note 11 – Deposits of Related Parties
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16,001,869
3,815,184
2,500,059
2,737,493

$

62,026,962
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Deposits are made in the normal course of business by officers and directors. These deposits are
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates, as those prevailing for
comparable transactions with other persons. The amount of deposits for related parties at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $7,138,048 and $6,517,963, respectively.

2023
3,815,184
2024 Parties
2,500,059
Note 11 – Deposits of Related
2025
2,737,493
Deposits are made in the normal course of business by officers and directors. These deposits are
Total
$
62,026,962
Annual
Report
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates, as those
prevailing
for 2020
comparable transactions with other persons. The amount of deposits for related parties at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $7,138,048 and $6,517,963, respectively.
Note 11 – Deposits of Related Parties

Note
12 –are
Federal
Home
Loan Bank
Deposits
made in
the normal
courseAdvances
of business by officers and directors. These deposits are
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates, as those prevailing for
Federal
Home
Loan
Bank
(FHLB)
advances
consisted
of the following
at December
31,parties at
transactions
other
persons.
The amount
of deposits
related
Deposits are made in the normal course of businesscomparable
by officers and
directors.with
These
deposits
are made
on substantially
thefor
same
terms,
including interest rates,
December
31,
2020
and
2019
was
$7,138,048
and
$6,517,963,
respectively.
2020
2019
as those prevailing for comparable transactions with other persons. The amount of deposits for related parties at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $7,138,048
and $6,517,963, respectively.
15 advances payable at maturity, interest ranging
from 1.04% to 3.02% is due monthly for the years
Note 12 – Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
Note 12 – Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
ended December
31, 2020 INC.
and 2019.
are
ALLENDALE
BANCORP,
AND Notes
SUBSIDIARIES
by
1-4
family
residential
estate of the following at December 31,
Loan
(FHLB)
advancesreal
consisted
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances consistedFederal
ofcollateralized
the Home
following
atBank
December
31,
certain agriculture real
estate loans. STATEMENTS
Due
NOTESloans
TO and
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL
2020
2019
dates range from 2019 through 2025.
15 advances payable at maturity, interest ranging
15 advances payable at maturity, interest ranging from 1.04% to 3.02%
is due monthly
December
31,
2020
and
2019
from are
1.04%
to 3.02% is by
due1-4
monthly for the years
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. Notes
collateralized
ended
December
31,Due
2020
and 2019. Notes are
$4,561,515
$5,072,278
family residential real estate loans and certain agriculture
real estate
loans.
dates
collateralized by 1-4 family residential real estate
range from 2019 through 2025.
Note 12 – Federal Home
Loan
Bank Advances
(Concluded)
loans
and certain
agriculture real
estate loans. Due
dates range from 2019 through 2025.
Note 11 – Deposits of Related Parties

The advances are collateralized by certain loans receivable. The carrying amount of the loans

to loans
the FHLB
as of December
2020 was
$93,247,000.
bank
hasas
FHLB
Letters 31, 2020 was $93,247,000.
The advances are collateralizedpledged
by certain
receivable.
The carrying31,
amount
of the
loans pledgedThe
to the
FHLB
of December
35
$4,561,515
$5,072,278
of Credit
securing
State
of Wabash
Illinois, General
WabashHospital,
GeneralCity
Hospital,
of Mount
Carmel Fund,
Police
The bank has FHLB Letters of Credit
securing
State of
Illinois,
of MountCity
Carmel
Police
Pension
City of Mount Carmel Firemen
Pension Fund and City of MountPension
Carmel deposits
in the
amountCarmel
of $23,250,000
$17,535,000,
respectively.
Fund, City
of Mount
Firemenand
Pension
Fund and
City of Mount Carmel deposits
inof
theFHLB
amount
of $23,250,000
andfor
$17,535,000,
respectively.
At December 31, 2020 maturities
advances
are as follows
the years ending:

At December 31, 2020 maturities of FHLB advances are as follows for the years ending:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Note 13 – Line of Credit

$

1,659,976
2,201,600
0
399,426
300,513
0

$

4,561,515
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Note 13 – Line of Credit
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The with
Bankthehas
a secure
line Bank.
of credit
the available
Federal Reserve
Bank.fluctuates
The amount
available
for available at December 31,
The Bank has a secure line of credit
Federal
Reserve
Thewith
amount
for borrowing
monthly.
The amount
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
2020 was $11,460,683. Under the
agreement
theNOTES
Bankmonthly.
is TO
required
to pledge
collateral
to the
Federal
Reserve
Bank.
At December
31, 2020, the Bank has pledged
borrowing
fluctuates
The
amount
available
at December
31, 2020
was
$11,460,683.
consumer loans in the amount of $14,146,000 to secure this loan. There were no borrowings under this credit facility at December 31, 2020. This line of credit can
the agreement
Bank
is required to pledge collateral to the Federal Reserve Bank. At
be used for overnight purchasesUnder
and carries
an interestthe
rate
of 3%.
December 31, 2020 and 2019
ALLENDALE
BANCORP,
INC. AND loans
SUBSIDIARIES
December 31, 2020,
the Bank has
pledged consumer
in the amount of $14,146,000 to
secure this loan.NOTES
There were
no
borrowings
under
this
credit
facility
at December 31, 2020. This
TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note
14 – Income
line
of credit
can beTaxes
used for overnight purchases and carries an interest rate of 3%.
The Bancorp and subsidiary file a consolidated federal income tax return on a calendar-year basis. The provision for income taxes consisted of the following for
Note 14 – Income Taxes

the years ended December 31:

December 31, 2020 and 2019
The Bancorp and subsidiary file a consolidated federal income tax return on a calendar-year
basis. The provision for income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended
December
31:
Note
14 – Income
Taxes
2020

2019

The Bancorp and subsidiary file a consolidated federal income tax return on a calendar-year
Current
tax provision
provision for income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended
basis.
The
Federal
$ 551,761
$
605,213
December
31:
State
315,279
327,591
2020
2019
867,040
932,804
Current tax provision
Deferred expense (benefit)
99,182
(256,608)
Federal
$ 551,761
$
605,213
Total tax expense
$ 315,279
966,222
$ 327,591
676,196
State

867,040statutory rates
932,804
The provision for income taxes differs from that computed by applying
to income
Deferred
expense
(benefit)as indicated in the following analysis:99,182
(256,608)
before
income
tax expense,
Total
taxcomputed
expense by applying statutory rates to income
$ 2020
966,222
676,196 as indicated in the following analysis:
The provision for income taxes differs from
that
before income$ tax 2019
expense,

The provision for income taxes differs from that computed by applying statutory rates to income 36
Federal statutory income tax at statutory rates
$ 797,257
$
692,394
before income tax expense, as indicated in the following analysis:
State income tax expense at statutory rates
360,664
313,226
2020
2019
Adjustments related to:
Tax exempt interest
(125,085)
(106,251)
Federal statutory income tax at statutory rates
$ 797,257
$
692,394
Nondeductible expense
40,603
46,102
State income tax expense at statutory rates
360,664
313,226
Other tax exempt income
(42,590)
(51,137)
Adjustments related to:
Net operating losses
0
(13,974)
Tax exempt interest
(125,085)
(106,251)
Other differences
(64,627)
(204,164)
Nondeductible expense
40,603
46,102
Total
income
tax expense
$ (42,590)
966,222
$
676,196
Other
tax exempt
income
(51,137)
Net operating losses
0
(13,974)
Other differences
(64,627)
(204,164)
Total income tax expense

$

966,222

$

676,196
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December 31, 2020 and 2019
Note 14 – Income Taxes (Concluded)
Note 14 – Income Taxes (Concluded)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities included in other assets or other liabilities at December 31

consist of the following:

2020

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses
Director benefits payable

$

Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated depreciation
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale
Prepaid expenses
Net deferred tax asset (liability)

2019

559,588
440,946
1,000,534

$

(286,792)
(590,589)
(106,527)
(983,908)
$

493,558
405,155
898,713
(158,440)
(228,607)
(54,603)
(441,650)

16,626

$

457,063

Note 15 – Benefit
Plans
and Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan
Note 15 – Benefit Plans and Supplemental
Executive
Retirement
Plan
The Bank provides
a trustee
profit-sharing
plan have
to allcompleted
full-time employees
who
have completed
The Bank provides a trustee profit-sharing
plan to all
full-time
employees who
one year of
service.
Employees may participate by contributing
a percentage of income as a savings
supplement
the plan through
payroll deductions.
The Directors
may change
theasamount
provided at any time. Bank
one year
of service.to Employees
may participate
by contributing
a percentage
of income
a
contributions to the plan for 2020savings
and 2019
were
$121,568
and
$119,325,
respectively.
supplement to the plan through payroll deductions. The Directors may change the
amount
provided
at any time.
Bank contributions
to the
plan for 2020
and 2019
werea $121,568
The Bank provides a supplemental
executive
retirement
plan (SERP)
for certain bank
executives.
The bank
is using
cash value life insurance policy to finance
and $119,325,
the SERP agreement. Expenses under
this planrespectively.
were $140,412 and $133,512, respectively. Benefits paid from this plan as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 were
$76,000.
The Bank provides a supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) for certain bank

Note 16 – Financial Instruments executives.
with Off-Balance-Sheet
Risk a cash value life insurance policy to finance the SERP agreement.
The bank is using

Expenses under this plan were $140,412 and $133,512, respectively. Benefits paid from this

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has various outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated
plan as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $76,000.
financial statements.
These commitments and contingent liabilities include various commitments to extend credit and lines of credit. Outstanding standby letters of credit which
are not reflected in the balance sheets were $1,808,339 on December 31, 2020 and $1,417,392 on December 31, 2019. The Bank evaluates each customer’s
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, standby letters of credit of $1,393,533 and $1,022,586, respectively, were unsecured.
The Bank has not had any standby letters of credit drawn upon as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Bank does not anticipate any material losses as a result
of these transactions.
Note 17 – Restrictions on Dividends

ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare without prior regulatory approval. The bank had $5,486,213 available for
dividends at December 31, 2020 without prior regulatory approval.December
The Bank paid
approximately
31, 2020
and 2019 $718,000 and $695,000 in dividends in 2020 and 2019.
Note 18 – Regulatory Capital

18 – Regulatory
Capital (Concluded)
The Bank is subject to various Note
regulatory
capital requirements
administered by federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial
Quantitative
measures
established
regulation
ensure corrective
capital adequacy
themust
Bankmeet
to specific capital guidelines that
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory by
framework
fortoprompt
action, require
the Bank
38
minimum
amounts and
(set
forth in the tableitems
below)
total andunder
Tier I regulatory
capital (asaccounting practices. The Bank’s
involve quantitative measures ofmaintain
the Bank’s
assets, liabilities,
andratios
certain
off-balance-sheet
as of
calculated
capital amounts and classification
are also
to qualitative
judgments
the regulators
about believes,
components,
weightings, and other factors. Prompt
defined
in thesubject
regulations)
to average
assets (asby
defined).
Management
as of risk
December
correctibe action provisions are not
applicable
to bank
companies.
31, 2020,
that the
Bankholding
meets all
capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
Quantitative measures established
ensure
adequacy
require the Bank
amountsofand
As by
of regulation
Decemberto
31,
2017,capital
the most
recent notification
from to
themaintain
Office ofminimum
the Comptroller
theratios (set forth in the table below
of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2020, that the Bank meets all
Currency
categorized
the
Bank
as
well
capitalized
under
the
regulatory
framework
for
prompt
capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain total risk-based,

As of December 31, 2017, the most
notification
from
the Office
of the
Comptroller
oftable.
the Currency
categorized
the Bank
Tier Irecent
risk-based,
and Tier
I leverage
ratios
as set
forth in the
There are
no conditions
or as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt
corrective
action.
To be categorized
as wellbelieves
capitalized
the
Bank must
maintain total
risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I
events
since
that
notification
that
management
have
changed
the
institution’s
category.
leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution’s category.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table.
REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS

As of December 31, 2020:
Total Capital
Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets)

Actual
Amount
Ratio

For Capital
Adequacy Purposes:
Amount
Ratio

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective
Action Provisions:
Amount
Ratio

$28,403,000

10.04%

>$11,321,000 >4.0%

>$14,151,250

>5.0%

$26,323,000

10.72%

>$9,818,000 >4.0%

>$12,272,850

>5.0%

As of December 31, 2019:
Total Capital
Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets)
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Note 19 – Fair Value Financial Instruments
FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, permits entities to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve
financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently
without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. The election to use the fair value option is available when an entity first recognizes a financial asset
or financial liability or upon entering into a Company commitment. Subsequent changes must be recorded in earnings.
FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Under this guidance, fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under this guidance are described below.
Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or
comparable assets or liabilities which use observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in active
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices in active markets include most U.S. government and agency securities, liquid mortgage products,
active listed equities and most money market securities. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. As required
by this guidance, the Company does not adjust the quoted price for such instruments.
The types of instruments valued based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable
levels of price transparency include most investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, less liquid mortgage products, less liquid equities, state, municipal and
provincial obligations, and certain physical commodities. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Level 3 is for positions that are not traded in active markets or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or nontransferability, and such adjustments are generally based on available market evidence. In the absence of such evidence, management’s best estimate is used.
Impaired loans are evaluated and valued at the time the loan is identified as impaired, using the present value of expected cash flows (if used, such amounts are
not included in the following tables), the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral (less cost to sell) if the loans are collateral dependent.
Market value is measured based on the value of the collateralsecuring these loans and is classified at a Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Collateral may be real
estate and/or business assets including equipment, inventory and/or accounts receivable. The value of real estate collateral is determined based on appraisal by
qualified licensed appraisers hired by the Company. The value of business equipment, inventory and accounts receivable collateral is based on the net book value
on the business’ financial statements and, if necessary, discounted based on management’s review and analysis. Discounts applied to appraisals have been in the
range of 0% to 50%. Impaired loans are reviewed and evaluated on at least a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly, based on the same
factors identified above.
Foreclosed properties are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed properties. Subsequently, foreclosed properties are carried at the lower
of carrying value or fair value. The estimated fair value for foreclosed properties included in Level 3 is determined by independent market based appraisals and
other available market information. Discounts applied to appraisals have predominantly been in the range of 0% to 50%; however, in certain cases the discounts
have ranged up to 75%, which include estimated costs to sell or other reductions based on market expectations or an executed sales contract. If fair value of the
collateral deteriorates subsequent to initial recognition, the Company records the foreclosed properties as a nonrecurring Level 3 adjustment. Valuation techniques
are consistent with those techniques applied in prior periods.
Cash and Due From Banks
The carrying amounts reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash and due from banks approximate those assets’ fair values.
Federal Funds Sold
The carrying amounts reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for federal funds sold approximate those assets’ fair values.
Available-for-sale-securities and Restricted Stock
Fair values for available-for-sale securities are based on quoted market prices, except for certain restricted stocks where fair value equals par value because of
certain redemption restrictions.
Loans
For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying amounts. The fair values for other
loans (for example, fixed rate commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans) are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on interest
rates currently being offered for loans with similar credit quality. Loan fair value estimates include judgments regarding future expected loss experience and risk
characteristics. Fair value for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values, where applicable. The carrying
amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value.
Deposits
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). The
carrying amounts of variablerate, fixed-term money-market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates
of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected
monthly maturities on time deposits. The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates its fair value.
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank Advances are estimated using a discounted cashflow analysis.
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Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank Advances are estimated using a discounted cash
flow analysis.
Accrued Interest
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair values.
Accrued Interest
Fair
valuesapproximate
of assets measured
on a values
recurring
basis atmeasured
December
2020 and
2019
are as
The carrying amounts of accrued
interest
fair values.Fair
of assets
on 31,
a recurring
basis
at December
31, 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:
follows:
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets/
Liabilities
(Level 1)

Fair Value

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

December 31, 2020 ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)
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Available-for-sale securities
December 31, 2019

$63,373,279

$

0

$63,373,279

$

0

0

$49,047,700

$

0

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Note 19 – Fair Value
Financial Instruments
(Continued)
Available-for-sale
securities
$49,047,700
$

The following tables set forth the Bank’s financial assets that were accounted for and disclosed

The following tables set forth theatBank’s
financial
that were
accounted
for and31,
disclosed
at 2019:
a fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2020
a fair value
on aassets
nonrecurring
basis
as of December
2020 and
and 2019:

December 31, 2020

Fair Value

Impaired loans
Other real estate
Commercial and industrial
Consumer and installment

$

Total impaired loans

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical
Assets/Liabilities
(Level 1)

781,396
709,614
66,947

$

0
0
0

$

781,396
709,614
66,947

$

0
0
0

$ 1,557,957

$

0

$ 1,557,957

$

0

Significant

Quoted Prices in

ALLENDALE BANCORP, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
Other
Active Markets
for
NOTES TO

December 31, 2019

Observable
Identical
Inputs
Assets/Liabilities
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
(Level 2)
(Level 1)
Fair Value

December 31, 2020 and 2019
Impaired loans
Other real estate
$
864,690
$
Commercial and industrial
1,065,677
Consumer
installment
Note 19
– Fairand
Value
Financial Instruments 109,564
(Concluded)
Total impaired loans

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$ 2,039,931

$

44
Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

0
0
0

$

864,690
1,065,677
109,564

$

0
0
0

0

$ 2,039,931

$

0

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, the
estimated
fair values
of the
Bank’s
financialInstruments,
instrumentsthe
areestimated
as follows:
In accordance with the disclosure
requirements
of FASB
ASC
825, Financial
fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments are as follows:
2020

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
$ 4,099,001
Investment securities
63,373,279
Loans
187,231,203
435,411
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, restricted
Other stock, restricted
157,850
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

$ 4,099,001
63,373,279
188,028,169
435,411
157,850

250,294,231
4,561,515

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
$ 6,074,351
Investment securities
49,047,700
Loans
169,002,028
221,676
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, restricted
Other stock, restricted
157,850
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
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218,109,270
5,072,278

$

250,298,482
4,560,799

2019

Carrying
Amount

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical
Assets/Liabilities
(Level 1)

Fair Value

$ 6,074,351
49,047,700
169,242,032
221,676
157,850
219,130,204
5,069,662

4,099,001
0
0
0
0

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

0
0

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical
Assets/Liabilities
(Level 1)

$

6,074,351
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
63,373,279
0
435,411
157,850

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$

0
4,560,799

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

0
49,047,700
0
221,676
157,850
0
5,069,662

0
0
188,028,169
0
0
250,298,482
0

45

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$

0
0
169,242,032
0
0
219,130,204
0
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Mallory G. Harrison
Assistant Cashier &
Executive Assistant
Elizabeth A. Dunn
Assistant Vice President
Julia A. Tennes
Assistant Vice President & Mortgage
Loan Originator
Sarah E. Ile
Assistant Vice President & Mortgage
Loan Officer

Robin Anderson
Mark Bader
Rae Lynn Barbre
Amy Bell
Lauren Berberich
Dee Breen
Kelsey Brown
Phil Coleman
Allyssa Culp
Elizabeth Fiero
Cami Golden
Mary Harness
Debbie Hipsher
Marcerie Hocking
Kirby Hunt
Missy Judge
Zane Kemper
Halley Kocher
Cortney Madden
Becky McDowell
Sean Ogelsby
Amy Quillen
Brooke Sanders
Hunter Shaw
Christina Smith
Charles Stoltz
Benita Tarlton
Morganna Thread
Yolanda Vallette
Jillian Wall
Wanda York
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